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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

Case No. _______ -

v. COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE 
FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS 

SW ARGYLL INVESTMENTS, LLC (d/b/a 
ARGYLL INVESTMENTS, LLC), DEMAND OF JURY TRIAL 
JAMES T. MICELI, 
DOUGLAS A. MCCLAIN, JR., 
AMERIFUND CAPITAL FINANCE, LLC, 
and JEFFREY SPANIER, 

Defendants. 

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"), for its Complaint 

24 against SW Argyll Investments, LLC (d/b/a Argyll Investments, LLC) ("Argyll"), James T. Miceli 

25 ("Miceli"), Douglas A. McClain, Jr. ("McClain"), AmeriFund Capital Finance, LLC 

26 ("AmeriFund"), and Jeffrey Spanier ("Spanier"), alleges as follows: 
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SUMMARY OF THE ACTION 

1. This case involves a fraudulent purported stock-collateralized loan business run by 

Argyll, which is controlled by Miceli and McClain. Since 2009, Argyll has induced at least nine 

affiliates of issuers to transfer ownership of millions of shares of publicly traded stock as collateral 

for purported loans based on a false promise to return the shares to borrowers upon repayments of 

the loans. Unbeknownst to the borrowers, however, Argyll sold their pledged shares (in 

unregistered transactions for which no exemption applied) before or soon after funding the loans -

and, in many cases, used the proceeds from the collateral sales to fund the loans. Because Argyll 

agreed to loan 30 to 50 percent less than the market value ofthe shares transferred, it retained 

substantial proceeds, even after funding each loan. It also received interest payments. As a result 

of this scheme, Argyll received more than $8 million in unlawful gains. Argyll attracts potential 

borrowers, among other ways, through its network of brokers, including AmeriFund, whose 

president is Spanier. 

2. Through their actions, Argyll, Miceli, and McClain violated Section 1 O(b) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 

promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.lOb-5]; Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 

780(a)]; and Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act") [15 U.S.C. §§ 

77e(a) and 77e(c)], and AmeriFund and Spanier violated Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act [15 

U.S.C. § 780(a)]. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20 and 22 of the 

25 Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77t and 77v] and Sections 21(d), 21(e), and 27 ofthe Exchange Act 

26 [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u(e), and 78aa]. Defendants, directly or indirectly, made use of the means 

27 or instrumentalities of transportation or communication in interstate commerce, or the mails, or the 
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facilities of a national securities exchange in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and 

courses of business alleged in this Complaint. 

4. Venue in this District is proper pursuant to Section 22 of the Securities Act [15 

u.S.C. § 77v] and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa]. Defendants transact 

business in the Southern District of California, and certain of the acts, practices, and courses of 

business constituting the violations ofthe federal securities laws alleged herein occurred within 

this judicial district. 

DEFENDANTS 

5. SW Argyll Investments, LLC (d/b/a Argyll Investments, LLC) is a Texas limited 

liability company located in San Diego, California, and is affiliated with The Argyll Group. Argyll 

is jointly owned by James T. Miceli and Douglas A. McClain, Jr. 

6. James T. Miceli, age 48, is a resident of Poway, California. Miceli is a member and 

the Chief Executive Officer of Argyll. 

7. Douglas A. McClain, Jr., age 37, is a resident of Savannah, Georgia. McClain is a 

member and the President of Argyll. 

8. AmeriFund Capital Finance, LLC is a Florida limited liability company located in 

Boca Raton, Florida. Spanier is the sole member of AmeriFund. 

9. Jeffrey Spanier, age 46, is a resident of Delray Beach, Florida. Spanier is the 

President and sole member of AmeriFund. 

RELATED ENTITIES 

10. The Argyll Group is a group of Texas and Delaware limited liability companies 

jointly controlled by Miceli and McClain. SW Argyll Investments, LLC (d/b/a Argyll Investments, 

LLC) is one of The Argyll Group's companies. 
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A. 

11. 

FACTS 

DEFENDANTS' FRAUDULENT SCHEME, 
MISREPRESENTATIONS, AND MISLEADING OMISSIONS 

The Stock Based Loan Program 

Miceli and McClain control The Argyll Group, a group of Texas and Delaware 

6 limited liability companies involved in "Private Equity Investment Banking and Corporate 

7 Finance." Argyll, one of The Argyll's Group's companies, provides stock-based lending services. 
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12. Argyll attracted potential customers through referrals from individuals or entities 

that hold themselves out as stock loan brokers. Argyll paid these stock loan brokers origination, 

broker, and "back-end" fees that were based upon the size of the loan transaction. 

13. Since 2009, Argyll, directly or through its brokers, made both recourse and non-

recourse loans to individuals or entities who pledged as collateral shares (often, restricted shares) 

of publicly traded stock. 

14. AmeriFund and Spanier brokered numerous transactions for Argyll's stock loan 

program. As part of this brokerage activity, Spanier solicited and negotiated loans that induced the 

borrowers to pledge shares as collateral for stock sales. From at least 2009, Argyll paid 

approximately $2 million in fees to AmeriFund and Spanier as compensation for brokering 

Argyll's stock loans. 

15. When a potential borrower contacted Argyll directly or, more often, through a 

broker like AmeriFund's Spanier, Argyll typically offered to loan 50% to 70% ofthe market value 

of the shares that the borrower proposed to use as collateral, depending on factors such as trading 

market, volume, and price volatility. If the potential borrower accepted the loan proposal, Argyll 

sent the borrower (or his or her broker) a "Loan Agreement," "Pledge Agreement," "Promissory 

Note," and other documents, such as instructions on how to transfer the stock collateral to Argyll 

(collectively, the "Loan Package"). 
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16. Pursuant to the Promissory Note, the borrower agreed to transfer ownership of his 

or her shares to Argyll. In exchange, Argyll agreed to fund the borrower's loan one to three days 

after the "Strike Price" (i.e., the collateral's five day Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAP) 

through the day preceding the closing date) was determined, all documents were executed, and the 

collateral was delivered to Argyll or its custodial brokerage account. 

17. If Argyll funded the loan, the borrower agreed to make quarterly interest-only 

payments to Argyll, based on a fixed interest rate. The lengths of the loans were generally fixed 

and were typically three years. Many of the loans also contained a "lockout" provision that 

prohibited the borrower from prepaying the loan until a specified period elapsed, usually twelve or 

eighteen months after date of the Loan Agreement. 

18. The standard Loan Package did not permit Argyll to sell the collateral except in the 

event of default. According to the Loan Agreement's section entitled "Lender's Right to 

Collateral": 

At any time after the date first above written and after Borrower's delivery to Lender of the 
Collateral, Lender shall be entitled from time to time, in its sole discretion to take any of 
the following actions with respect to the collateral. 

19. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

Hold all or a portion of the Collateral as security for the obligations 
hereunder and under the Note, and pursuant to the Pledge Agreement. .. ; 
or 
Lend all or a portion of the Collateral, free and clear of any lien or 
encumbrances ... ; or 
Pledge, encumber, hypothecate all or a portion of the Collateral free and 
clear of any lien or encumbrances ... ; or 
Commingle the Collateral with other assets or securities of the Lender. 

Moreover, at least one Loan Agreement contained the following additional 

provision: "Lender shall not sell any of the Collateral unless an Event of Default had occurred and 

is continuing." (Emphasis added). 

20. Miceli and McClain told borrowers orally (and reiterated in the Loan Packages) that 

Argyll would engage only in "hedging" transactions in connection with the loan to minimize its 
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risk of an increase or decrease in collateral value. Argyll, however, did not enter into any hedging 

transactions; it simply sold the collateral outright to fund its loans. 

21. Upon repayment of the loan, Argyll agreed to return the borrowers' shares within 

twenty days. If the collateral decreased in value during the life of the loan, the borrower at 

repayment would receive the fair market value of the collateral originally provided to Argyll (i.e., 

Argyll would return the initially pledged collateral). Ifthe collateral increased in value during the 

life of the loan, the borrower would receive the original collateral (minus any hedging costs 

incurred by Argyll) thereby receiving the benefit of any appreciation in price. 

B. 

22. 

Argyll's Purported Stock-Collateralized Loan Business is a Fraudulent Scheme 

Argyll's purported stock-collateralized loan business is a fraudulent scheme 

perpetrated by Miceli and McClain to acquire shares of publicly traded stock from borrowers at a 

30% to 50% discount to their then-current market value, to sell the shares for full market value in 

order to fund the loan, and to use the remaining proceeds from the sale of the collateral for their 

own benefit. Miceli and McClain, through Argyll's Loan Packages and communications with 

borrowers, made false statements and omitted to state other important facts in connection with this 

scheme, including lying to borrowers and their representatives about Argyll's selling their 

collateral prior to any default. 

23. Miceli and McClain are joint owners of Argyll. As the sole officers and directors of 

Argyll, they were the only individuals to sign the Loan Packages on Argyll's behalf. They are also 

the sole signatories on Argyll's bank and brokerage accounts and control all of Argyll's trading 

and banking activities. 

24. Miceli, McClain, and Argyll did not disclose to borrowers that it intended to sell 

26 substantially all of a borrower's shares within days of closing their loans, and, in most cases, 

27 explicitly told borrowers that their collateral would not be sold unless a default occurred. In one 

28 
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instance, McClain specifically told an attorney who negotiated several Argyll stock loan 

transactions for the borrower that Argyll would not sell the collateral shares. 

25. Argyll had no independent source of funds other than the borrowers' collateral and 

could not lend money without selling the collateral, meaning that, in many cases, Argyll sold the 

collateral prior to closing the loan, and used the proceeds to fund the loan. 

26. In addition, Miceli, McClain, and Argyll misrepresented to borrowers that Argyll 

would return shares to them upon the borrowers' repayment of the loan. The Loan Agreement 

stated that Argyll would return "the appropriate number of shares that constitutes the Collateral" to 

borrowers who repay their loans. Instead, Argyll sold all of the shares that it received from the 

borrowers, but did not set aside any cash reserves to repurchase and return shares to the borrowers 

who repaid their loans pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 

27. Altogether, Argyll sold virtually all of the pledged collateral, prior to any default. 

Miceli and McClain used the sales proceeds remaining after funding Argyll's loans to, among 

other things, pay their personal expenses. 

28. 

C. 

Argyll' stock sales accounted for the vast majority of its revenue. 

Specific Examples of Defrauded Borrowers 

19 Victim A 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29. Victim A is the former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of a New York Stock 

Exchange listed-company involved in the development, leasing, and management of real estate 

("Company A"). Sometime in 2008 or 2009, Victim A received an unsolicited telephone call from 

Spanier in which Spanier offered to broker a stock-collateralized loan. 

30. In September 2009, Victim A applied for a stock-collateralized loan through 

Spanier/AmeriFund, who referred him to Argyll. Victim A entered into a three-year loan 

agreement with Argyll (dated December 1,2009), in which he pledged 700,000 shares of Company 
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A's stock as collateral. At closing, Victim A's shares had a value of $6,846,000. Argyll agreed to 

loan Victim A 65% of the stock's value, resulting in a loan of $4,449,900 with an annual interest 

rate of 4%. McClain executed the loan agreement on behalf of Argyll, which paid Spanier and 

AmeriFund a $407,337 fee for brokering the loan (representing a 3% origination fee that Argyll 

subtracted from Victim A's loan proceeds and a 4% "back-end" fee paid by Argyll). 

31. On December 3, 2009, Victim A transferred 700,000 shares of Company A to 

Argyll, which provided Victim A with a $4,316,403 loan (representing the remainder of the $4.4 

million loan after Argyll had subtracted AmeriFund's/Spanier's origination fee of $133,497) that 

same day. In addition to Argyll's standard loan agreement language, Victim A's agreement 

contained the added provision that the "[l]ender shall not sell any of the Collateral unless an Event 

of Default has occurred or is continuing." Nonetheless, Argyll sold all ofthe Company A shares 

between December 4 and December 10, 2009, generating approximately $6.5 million in proceeds. 

Argyll profited approximately $1.6 million from the transaction. 

32. In October 2010, Victim A sought to repay the loan and retrieve the Company A 

shares he had pledged as collateral. Victim A provided written notice to Argyll and requested wire 

transfer instructions to repay the loan on December 1, 2010 - the first day that the Loan Agreement 

permitted him to prepay. The Loan Agreement required Argyll to return the shares to him no more 

than twenty days after he repaid the loan. As of December 1,2010, however, the market price of 

Company A's stock was $13.08 per share, meaning that Argyll would need to pay approximately 

$9 million)o purchase in the market the Company A shares (which it had sold a year earlier for 

only $6.5 million) to return to Victim A. Rather than disclosing to Victim A that Argyll had sold 

his collateral, McClain instead offered to increase Victim A's loan by $1 million, lower the loan's 

interest rate from 4% to 2.25%, and reduce the prepayment penalty. In exchange, Victim A agreed 
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to extend the "lockout period" by six months. Victim A accepted this offer and agreed to the new 

loan provisions; Miceli executed the agreement for Argyll. 

33. Neither Miceli nor McClain disclosed to Victim A that Argyll had sold all of his 

Company A shares in December 2009 within one week of receiving them. 

34. On April 20, 2011, Victim A provided Spanier with notice of his intent to repay the 

loan upon expiration of the second lockout period (June 2, 2011). Spanier forwarded the notice to 

McClain the following day. 

Victim B 

35. Victim B is the President, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman ofthe Board of 

Directors of an American Stock Exchange-listed company involved in the development, 

production, and exploration of crude oil and natural gas ("Company B"). On March 30,2011, 

Victim B entered into a three-year loan agreement with Argyll (dated March 8, 2011) for which he 

pledged 1 million shares of Company B. McClain executed the loan agreement - which did not 

permit Argyll to sell the collateral - on Argyll's behalf. 

36. AmeriFund and Spanier brokered Victim B's loan, and Argyll paid 

AmeriFundiSpanier a total fee of$51,350 in connection with the loan transaction. 

37. On April 1, 2011, Victim B transferred 1 million shares of Company B to Argyll. 

Argyll began selling Victim B's shares, and by the time Argyll funded the $377,000 loan on April 

8,2011, it had already sold almost 400,000 shares for proceeds of approximately $261,000. Argyll 

sold the remaining shares over the course ofthe next month and, by May 9, 2011, it had sold alII 

million shares, for total proceeds of approximately $620,000. Argyll profited approximately 

$192,000 from the transaction. 
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C. Defrauded Borrowers of Argyll 

38. The following chart identifies some of the borrowers Argyll defrauded: 

Date of Loan Number of Loan Amount Argyll Signatory on 
Agreement Shares Pled~ed Loan A~reement 

121112009 700,000 $4,449,900 McClain 

3/8/2011 1,000,000 $377,000 McClain 

3/312010 1,000,000 $4,930,000 McClain 

4/15/2010 1,220,000 $1,537,200 Miceli 

211212011 52,246 $557,726.05 McClain 

12122/2009 3,250 $46,117.50 Miceli 

10118/20lO 750,000 $307,125 McClain 

11 18120 lO 800,000 $236,880 McClain 

1119/2011 750,000 $207,900 Miceli 

4116/20lO 6,000,000 $1,320,000 Miceli 

9/29/2010 6,000,000 $528,000 Miceli 

2/1112011 490,000 $735,000 McClain 

3/412011 490,000 $764,400 Miceli 

ARGYLL'S SALES OF COLLATERAL SHARES 
WERE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMMISSION 

39. The Borrowers identified in Paragraph 38, above, were all affiliates of issuers and 

23 pledged restricted shares to Argyll as collateral for their stock loans. 

24 40. Rather than retain the shares as collateral as the Loan Agreements required, Argyll, 

25 at the direction of Miceli and McClain, sold the shares into the public markets soon after receiving 

26 them. 

27 

28 
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41. These distributions were done without effective registration statements and were not 

2 exempt from registration. 

3 THE DEFENDANTS ACTED AS UNREGISTERED BROKERS OR DEALERS 
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42. Argyll, along with Miceli and McClain who acted through Argyll, during all 

relevant times were neither registered as, nor associated with, a registered broker or dealer. 

43. Amerifund, along with Spanier who acted through AmeriFund, during all relevant 

times were neither registered as, nor associated with, a registered broker or dealer. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.c. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 
Thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] By Argyll, Miceli, and McClain 

44. The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

in paragraphs 1 through 43, inclusive, as if they were fully set forth herein. 

45. By engaging in the conduct described above, Argyll, Miceli, and McClain, 

knowingly or recklessly, in connection with the purchase or sale of securities, directly or indirectly, 

by the use of the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or the mails, or the facilities of 

a national securities exchange: 

a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud; 

b. made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state material facts 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or 

c. engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which operated or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person in connection with the purchase 

or sale of any security. 
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46. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Argyll, Miceli, and McClain violated Section 

lOeb) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.l0b-

5]. 

47. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Aiding and Abetting and Control Person Liability for Violations of Section 10(b) 
of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.c. § 78j(b») and Rule 10b-5 Thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 

240.10b-5) By Miceli and McClain 

The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

in paragraphs 1 through 46, inclusive, as if they were fully set forth herein. 

48. By engaging in the conduct described above, Argyll, knowingly or recklessly, in 

connection with the purchase or sale of securities, directly or indirectly, by the use of means or 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or the mails, or the facilities of a national securities 

exchange: 

a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud; 

b. made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state material facts 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; andlor 

c. engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which operated or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person in connection with the purchase 

or sale of any security. 

49. Miceli and McClain, knowingly or recklessly, provided substantial assistance to 

Argyll in connection with its violations of Section lO(b) ofthe Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] 

and Rule lOb-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.l0b-5]. 

50. Miceli and McClain were controlling persons of Argyll for the purposes of Section 

27 20(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78t(a)]. 

28 
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51. Miceli and McClain exercised actual power and control over Argyll, including 

2 holding joint ownership over Argyll, sole signatory authority on Argyll's bank and brokerage 

3 accounts, and authority to execute the Loan Packages. 
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52. By reason of the foregoing, (a) Miceli and McClain aided and abetted Argyll's 

violations of Section 10(b) ofthe Exchange Act [l5U.S.C. §78j(b)] and Rulel0b..;5 thereunder 

[17 C.F.R. § 240.l0b-5].and (b) as Argyll's controlling persons under Section 20(a) of the 

Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78t(a)], Miceli and McClain are liable for Argyll's violations of 

Section lOeb) ofthe Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule lOb-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 

240.10b-5]. 

53. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Sections Sea) and S(c) [15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77e(c)] of the 
Securities Act by Argyll, Miceli, and McClain 

The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

15 in paragraphs 1 through 52, inclusive, as if they were fully set forth herein. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

54. By engaging in the conduct described above, Argyll, Miceli, and McClain, directly 

or indirectly, through the use ofthe means or instruments of transportation and communication in 

interstate commerce or the mails, offered to sell or sold securities, or carried such securities 

through the mail or interstate commerce for the purpose of sale or delivery after sale. 

55. No registration statements were filed with the Commission or were in effect with 

22 respect to the offer or sale of the securities described above. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

56. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Argyll, Miceli, and McClain violated 

Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77e(c)]. 
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57. 

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.c. § 78o(a)] 
by Argyll, Miceli, McClain, AmeriFund, and Spanier 

The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

in paragraphs 1 through 56, inclusive, as if they were fully set forth herein. 

58. By engaging in the conduct described above, Argyll, Miceli, McClain, AmeriFund, 

and Spanier, directly or indirectly, made use of the mails or means or instrumentalities of interstate 

commerce to effect transactions in, or to induce or attempt to induce, the purchase or sale of 

securities, without being registered as a broker or dealer with the Commission, or being associated 

with a broker or dealer registered with the Commission. 

59. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Argyll, Miceli, McClain, AmeriFund, and 

Spanier violated Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(a)]. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court enter a Final 

Judgment: 

I. 

Finding that the Defendants violated the securities laws as alleged herein; 

II. 

Permanently enjoining Argyll, Miceli, and McClain from violating Section 10(b) of the 

Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], Section 

15(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(a)], and Sections 5(a) and 5(c) ofthe Securities Act 

[15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77e(c)]; 

III. 

Permanently enjoining AmeriFund and Spanier from violating Section 15(a) of the 

Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(a)]; 
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IV. 

Ordering Defendants to disgorge the unlawful profits derived from the activities set forth in 

this Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon; 

V. 

Ordering Argyll, Miceli, and McClain to pay a civil penalty purSUill1t to Section 21 (d) of the 

Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)] and Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)]; 

and ordering AmeriFund and Spanier to pay a civil penalty pursuant to Section 21 (d) of the 

Exchange Act [15 U.S.c. § 78u(d)]; and 

VI. 

Granting such other and further relief as the Court may deem just, equitable, and necessary. 

Dated: March 15,2012 

Respectfully submitted, 

By: sf Dean M. Conway 
Dean M. Conway 
Scott W. Friestad 
Julie M. Riewe 
Jacob D. Krawitz 
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Attorneys for Plaintiff 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 
100 F Street, NE 
Washington, DC 20549 
Telephone: (202) 551-4412 
Facsimile: (202) 772-9332 
E-mail: ConwayD@sec.gov 
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